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23 Promenade St., Suite 201 
Bluffton, SC 29910 
Tel: 843.757.7411 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS NARRATIVE  
 
1181 May River Road  
Bluffton, SC 29910 
 
DATE:   November 26, 2024 

The	applicant	Trevor	Wells	requests	a	zoning	variance	for	1181	May	River	Road	/	Tax	ID#	R610	
039	000	097A	0000, from	Section	5.3.7.B.2b	of	the	Unified	Development	Ordinance,	to	allow	
encroachment	into	the	50-foot	vegetative	buffer	along	SC	HWY	46	(May	River	Road).		The	proposed	
lot	is	a	medium	mixed-use	lot	within	the	Neighborhood	Core	Zoning	District	which	allows	a	10’	
front	setback.		Due	to	site	constraints,	the	applicant	proposes	a	reduction	of	the	buffer	from	50’	to	
15’.	
	

• The	15’	setback	/	buffer	is	consistent	with	the	adjacent	properties	to	the	Southeast	(Stock	
Farm)	and	to	the	east	at	1199	May	River	Road;	1203	May	River	Road	and	within	the	Historic	
District.	Currently,	there	is	no	existing	vegetative	buffer	at	the	front	of	the	property.	

 
• The reduced buffer encourages redevelopment and provides a transition from no buffers 

within the Historic District  to 50’ buffers along the scenic May River Road corridor.   
The Town of Bluffton streetscape (sidewalks, streetlights, landscape) has been designed 
to accommodate buildings fronting the streets and encourages sidewalk connectivity to 
the street versus parking lots adjacent to the scenic highway. 
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The following is the supporting documentation from Article 3 of the UDO.  
 
1. Section 3.7.3.A. The application must comply with applicable requirements in the Applications 
Manual. 
 
Applicant Response:  
The application has been submitted to Town Staff, per requirements of the Applications Manual. 
 
2. Section 3.7.3.B.1. Unnecessary Hardship. A Variance from a dimensional or design standard may be 
granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals in an individual case of unnecessary hardship upon a finding 
that all of the following standards are met. 
 

A. Section 3.7.3.B.1.a. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the 
particular piece of property 

 
Applicant Response: 
The lot has an existing metal building and when the 50’ required buffer is applied; along with walkways  
and access from the building;  the property is not suitable for commercial development consistent with 
the May River Road Corridor and current zoning.  The applicant proposes redevelopment of the site to 
be more consistent with adjacent properties recently developed. 
 

B. Section 3.7.3.B.1.c. Because of these conditions, the application of the Ordinance to the 
particular piece of property would effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization 
of the property in a manner consistent with others in the zoning district. 

 
Applicant Response: 
With the 50’ buffer the maximum building depth is limited to ±30’.  Based on this minimal development 
area, any type of commercial development is restricted.  

 
C. Section 3.7.3.B.1.d. The need for the Variance is not the result of the Applicant’s own 
actions. 

 
Applicant Response: 
The current zoning was in place when the applicant purchased the property and is not a result of the 
applicant’s actions. There is also no vegetative buffer at the front of the property currently. 
 

D. Section 3.7.3.B.1.e. The authorization of a Variance does not substantially conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the purposes of this Ordinance. 

 
Applicant Response:  
Per the Town of Bluffton: ‘ The Neighborhood Core zoning district is purposed to have moderate–
intensity, mixed-use development and the Future Land Use Map envisions this area for Mixed-Use which 
describes future uses in the following manner:  A variety of complementing and integrated uses such as, 
but not limited to: residential, offices, light/unobtrusive/small scale manufacturing and assembly, retail, 
public use/facilities, or entertainment in a compact urban form.’ 
 

Attachment 1



23 Promenade St., Suite 201 
Bluffton, SC 29910 
Tel: 843.757.7411 

	

The requested variance does not create a substantial departure from the goals and purposes of the 
Zoning District or Comprehensive Plan because the proposed density and uses are like what is described 
above. 
 

E. Section 3.7.3.B.1.f. The authorization of a Variance will not result in a substantial detriment 
to adjacent property or the public good, and the character of the District will not be harmed by 
the granting of the Variance. 

 
Applicant Response: 
The proposed plan will be consistent with the character of Old Town Bluffton and provide more effective 
use of space and aesthetic along the Hwy 46 Streetscape.  The reduced buffer provides a transition from 
the Historic district to the 50’ buffer along the scenic May River Road corridor. The adjacent properties 
do not have a 50’ buffer. 
 

F. Section 3.7.3.B.1.g. The reason for the Variance is more than simply for convenience or to 
allow the property to be utilized more profitably. 

 
Applicant Response: 
The property will be limited in development by only allowing a 30’ building depth. 
 
Please feel free to contact our office if you need additional information or have questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

 
Dan Keefer 
843-757-7411 
Dan@wjkltd.com 
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